
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
THIRTY-FIFTH SESSION 

Official Records• 

Thursday, 

SIXTH COMMITTEE 
56th meeting 

held on 
20 November 1980 

at 3 p.m. 
New York 

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 56th MEETING 

Chairman: Mr. KOROMA (Sierra Leone) 

later: Mr. KIRSCH (Canada) 

CONTENTS 

AGENDA ITEM 29: DRAFI'ING OF AN INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION AGAINST THE RECRUITMENT, 
USE, FHIANCING AND TRAINING OF MERCENARIES: REPORT OF THE SECRETARY-GENERAL 
(continued) 

AGENDA ITEM 106: REPORT OF THE INTERNATIONAL LAW COMMISSION ON THE WORK OF ITS 
THIRTY-SECOND SESSION (continued) 

• This record is subject to correction. Corrections should be sent under the 
signature of a member of the delegation concerned within one month of the date 
of p11blicatio11 to the Chief of the Official Records Editing Section, room A-3550, 
866 United Nations Plaza (Alcoa Building), and incorporated in a copy of the 
record. 

Dlstr. GENERAL 
A/C.6/35/SH.56 
8 December 1980 
ENGLI8H 

Corrections will be issued after the end of the session, in a separate fascicle for 
each Committee. 

ORIGINAL: SPAUISH 

80-57703 I ..• 



A/C.f,/35/SR.56 
Enp:lish 
Par.;e 2 

The meetinP, was called to order at 3.15 p.~. 

i\(iE.!DA Fl'E:.r 29: DHJ\]:t''l'lirG OF kJ rnTEmL'-\.TIONAL CONVLHTIOH AGAINST Tim HECRUI'ri.mrn, 
u:3·;, FIITJ\ilTClTJG AND TRAINING OF 1-11:RCE:.iJARIES: REPORT OF THE SECRETAHY-GENEML 
(_continued) (P./3r;/3G6 and Add.13; A/C.6/35/L.14 and Corr.l, L.15) 

l. The CJIAimIAH saia. that, if there was no objection, he uould take it tlmt the 
(\>Ll!!littee uishec1 to adopt draft resolution A/C .6/35/L.14 and Corr .1 by consensus. 

2. It m~s so decicled. 

3. 1'1r. GH/\.Y {United States of Anerica) said that his clelen-ation hac1 ;oined in the 
CO!lP-ensus~nn expreosion of its 1rillin[;ncss to "18.te a con~tructive c~ntribution 
to tlle drnftin:,:: of a treaty on the problem of nercenaries. However, it had 
s~rious reservatio11s about soT1e parar,ra!>hs, particularly the fourth preaJllbular 
pc,ra1'r :.ph, which in its present for:.1 appeared to be an attempt to assert a principle 
\.

1llich h.:ul no basis in l::nr, and operative paraGra-r:,h 3, the wordinG of which prejuclGed 
tl!c.• work of the ./\.cl Hoe CoH,aittee by definin. in advance the· scope of the proposed 
convent.ion. 

4. .'lr. DAHELIUS (Sweden), s·lJC~akine on behalf of tbc delegations of the i-ioruic 
countries:, saicl tlmt they had po.rtici;_;atecl L1 the consensus on draft resolution 
A/C.6/35/L.14 and Corr.l because they were in r,eneral aareement wit:\} its contents 
und objectives. Incleed, the laws of the rTorclic countries alreatly contained 
proil.ihitionn in the field covered by the resolution. However, the clelegations of 
tl1c iiordic countrieo 1ud difficulties in acceptinr, the fourth preambular paraF.raph, 
which ut.ite<.l ti1:1.t the activities of mercenaries were coutrary to fundamental 
;1rinci_t_1l•~s of international lau, such us non-interference in the internal affairs 
of Gto.tcs, territorial inte_ :rity and independence, since in their opinion those 
princi:)leG O.).,µlied e,:clusively to the relations between States ancl. could not be 
violatecl uy the activities of p:;.~ivo.te intlivi.1uals. 

5. iir. FL:Sif:CIIJJAUEn (Ti't.:-dcral Re'1ublic of Ger..,ar,y) said t'.1at he uelcomecl the 
:1u.OP%ion by consensus of tlraft resolution A/C.6/35/L.14 antl. Corr.l, althour;h he 
uonld have wished certain parts of it to oe formulnted rtiore clearly. He felt 
t'1ci.t th2 fourth prec.nbular l)arar;ranh dic'. not distin{\uish cle2'rly enouc~h between 
the re>snon:.;ibilities of Ste.teo on the one hc~nd and the civil and criminal liability 
of inJi vic1uuls on the other. He also had certain doubts about the words "an 
interuationn.l convention to prohibit the recruit11J.ent ••• " in operative paragranh 3, 
b0cause he believed tln.t certain activities of mercenaries could not be prohibited 
1J:r 1:lle _nroposeC. convention but only tl1rough national ler;islc.tion for itn 
iraple'lcntat ion. 

6. ; ir. 11IPJ:RT (Fro.nee) sc.irl tho.t the wordinr, of the first preaJ!lbular paraEraph 
un.o not strictly corrc>ct, because there m1s no reference in Article 2 of the 
C:nrter to sel f-cte~er.:1inn.tion of peoples. The second !)rean11rnlar po.ra~rapli referred 
to resolutiuns on uhich hio delcr;e.tion h~d abstain eel or co.st a neiative vote, and 
its 1:ol:lition in tlnt respect, re1,1ained tu1cho.nGed. Bis delet1ation hnd serious lecal 
1 .::!ncrvationf: :ibuut the fourth prewnbul11r :,;io.rar;rnph, because it did not believe 
t.!11t the uctivities or mercenaries could ue equated with thos0. of a Stc.te. An 

/ ... 



A/C.G/35/SR.'jG 
Enr;lish 
Pap;e 3 

Cir. Ifrpert. France) 

inciividual could not interfere in the internal affairs of ..:mother Sts.te or impair 
its territorial integrity and inde::_)en<'lence; all he could be charged uith was -
i:npairinr, State security. Lastly, althou~h Prance had consistently conde1.med 
the policies of apartheid of the South African P.uthorities, it did not believe 
that that could be ten1ed a decolonization probleH. For all those reasons, his 
delegation wished to state that, although it had not uanted to o:upose the consensus, 
it would have abstained if the draft resolution has been put to the vote. 

7. Mr. AlTDETISOrJ (United Kinc;Llom) saicl that, although his dele~ation had joined 
in the consensus on draft resolution A/C. 6/35/L.lli and Corr .1, it continued to 
lmve reservations. For instance, the fourth prearabular paraGraph appeared to 
so..y thnt the activities of mercenaries were alm\"S contrary to interm1.tional law. 
That seemed to his dele0ation to [!O too far, particularly bearinc in mind the law 
on State res:nonsibility, ancl it i:-rould have preferred ci, morP flexible and less 
categorical pro;:iosition. His deler;ation would have wishecl o:i;,erative para:::ra:9h 3 
to request the Ad Hoe Com.'TI.i ttee as a first ster, to study, fro:1 t::.1e lei'.3'.al stand:9oint, 
the present situation regarclinc; mercenaries, taJ:inr! into account the naterials 
111entioned in operative parar.;raph lr. His deler.;ation understood, houever, tlmt it 
,ms not the intention of the sponsors to rush into draftinc; the convention before 
the Acl. Iloc Committee had had a chance to study the. material requested in o:9erative 
paragraph 5. 

G. The Ad Hoe Conm.1ittee 1 s worl~ would involve qu~stions of international lau, 
na.tional criL1inal law, hw:i1anitarian lau anc1. human ri~hts - issues much more 
complex than i:a the case of the. International Convention against t:1e rrah:inr~ of 
IIostac;es, since the latter c1.ealt ui th an action ,rhich was a co!Y'.mon crime under all 
systems of lu.w, whereas not all mercenary activities were common crir-1es. 

9. ii. complicated exercise was about to l>er:;in, anc1. his delegation reserved its 
position on the issues to be discussed and 011 the acceptability of the results 
of the work. 

10. Mr. KIRSCH (Canada) said that his delegation wished to express reservations 
concerning the fourth preambular paragraph of draft resolution A/C.6/35/L.14 and 
Corr.l, because the formulation used was not a correct statement of internaticnal 
law; States, not individuals, were subjects of international law, and it was 
therefore States which were responsible for observine the fundamental principles 
listed in that paragraph. Thus, if a State was involved in activities of 
mercenaries, that involvement, rather than the activity itself, would possibly be 
contrary to international law. Secondly, given the fact that differing methods to 
implement international norms against activities of mercenaries might be required 
in various national legal systems, his dele~ation considered the mandate of the 
Ad Hoe Committee to be set out in operative paragraphs 3 and 4, taken toeether. 

11. Mr. FERRARI-BRAVO (Italy) said that his delegation had joined in the 
consensus on draft resolution A/C.6/35/L.14 and Corr.l because it strongly 
condemned the practice of using mercenaries. However, it had some reservations 
about the wording of certain parar,raphs, particularly the fourth preambular 
paraf,raph, where ideas were expressed which related more to the relationship 

I ••• 



A/C.6/35/SR,56 
m,n:lish 
Patse 4 
(!1r. Ferrari-Bravo, Italv) 

between States than to the activities of individuals. Only States could interfere 
in the internal affairs of other States or imperil their territorial inteerity or 
ind.epenc1enc e. 

12. In acldition, his deleC7,ation uould have preferred a clearer definition in 
operative paragra!)h 3 of the Ad Hoe Committee's mandate, because the present 
wording could open the door to formulations which would impose upon States 
ultra vires obli~ations. 

13. I-1r. BROOK (Australia) said the.t, although he h:1d joined in the consensus, he 
was not in full agreement with the fourth preambular paragraph, tal~en vith 
operative para£,;raph 3. He was not satisfied that "the activities of mercenaries", 
without further definition, were contrary to the fundamental principles of 
international lmr listed in the text, and he saw it as beinis part of the task of 
tlle Acl Hoe Coiillaittee to consider how far they should be, 

111, Hr. HIHKLER (Austria) welcomed the adoption by consensus of draft resolution 
A/C,6/35/L,14 ancl Corr.l but said that he would ha.Ye preferred the fourth 
!Jreambular paragraph to be drafted in such a ,my as to make clear the distinction 
betueen t!1e area of domestic civil anc.l. penal lau and the norms and principles of 
international law and so as not to prejudice the future work of the Ad Hoe 
Cornmittee. He would also have preferred the expression employed in·. the title to 
be uGeu. throuGhout the draft resolution so as not to create the impression of 
differences where none existed. 

15. I1lr. Cl.UBiJTilT-BAXTT.:Il (Heu Zealand) welcome cl the adoption by consensus of clraft 
re5olution A/C.6/3;/L.14 and Corr.l. His delegation was greatly concerned thRt 
the final outcome of the Ad Hoe Cor.imittee's work should be consistent with 
international norms and with national penal laws, so that it could be ratified 
'1ithout difficulty. \-lhile his delegntion had so:r:1e reservations about the fourth 
prear 1bular paragraph, taken with operative pa.raGrar>h 3, it was sure that, if the 
reservations ex1)ressed were tal:en into account and the Ad Hoe Committee proceeded 
with caution, value.ble results would be achieved. 

1G. Mr. LACLL~A (Spain) said he vas pleased that draft resolutior. 
A/C. 6/35/L.14 a.nil. Corr. l had been adopted by consensus. Although it had some 
reservations concernin~ the fourth preambular pa.rac;raT)h, for the reasons stated 
by previou5 speakers, his dele~ation would be happy to participate in the vorl;: of 
the J\.u Hoe Committee. 

17. 1i'he CHJ\IPJ-WJ announced that the Cor,mlittee h8.d included its consideration of 
a~;cncla item 29. 

AGENDA ITEl:1 106: REPORT OF THE IN'l.1ImNATIOilAL LAH COl.£.-1ISSIOH ON THE WORK OF ITS 
TIIITITY-SECOlID SESSION (continued) (A/35/10, A/35/388; A/C.6/35/4) 

lU. Mr. GRAY (United States of AI:1eric a) , ref err in~ to the topic of the 
non-no.vic;ationo.l uses of international uatercourses, said the discussion in the 
CoTJll'Jlittec hnd indicated that many States supported the efforts of the 

/ ... 



A/C.6/35/SR.56 
Ene:lish 
Page 5 

(Mr. Gray, United States) 

International Lau Corn1:11ission. However, some cornr,ienti::, when combined with attacks 
on the status of international organizations and extre:r1e atsolutist notions of 
State iIIDnunity, had been thinly disguised and anachronistic reflections of an 
imperialist view which had not caught up with the world of 1980, 

19. One speaker had noted that the report of the Commission did not contain a 
complete rendition of the general principles of international law applicable to 
the subject, and he agreed that it would be possible to give those principles 
definitive consideration only when they had been completely set forth. The 
optimum would be to have a set of general principles in extenso, all at once, but 
that might not be practical in the present case; as in the case of many other 
topics, it mi~ht be necessary to approach the subject a step at a time. Indeed, 
the Special Rapporteur's report referred to two further principles which uere to be 
placed before the Connaission. Regardins the difficulties which one delegation 
seemed to have with the expression "international watercourse systelri", he said it 
was clear that that term could not be equated 1rith the definition of an 
international river for purposes of navigation which had been adopted. at the 
Congress of Vienna. At the same time, it was not a terrn uhich could be equated 
with the drainaee bas in. Ref erring to paragrarhs ( 2) and ( 8) of the commentary 
to draft article 1 (A/35/10, pp. 251 and 253), he expressed the belief that the 
term "international watercourse system" should be tentatively accepted as a working 
hypothesis which uas subject to change. In paragraph 90 of its report, the 
Coitllllission described its tentative understanding of what was meant by the tern 
"international watercourse system". The description showed clearly that the ten.1 
was not simply another way of sayinc: "drainage basin". 

20. His delegation was not convinced by the argur.aent that the obligation under 
article 3, paragra:9h 3, to negotiate in good faith for the purpose of concludine; 
one or more system agreements was not meaningful, since the States concerned would 
themselves decide whether or not to negotiate; it concurred in general uith the 
analysis made by the delegation of Algeria on that point. Of course, it would be 
far better if there uas a process of third-party judgement which could oblige 
States to take one or another interpretation of an international obli.~ation. 

21. Finally, some reservations had been expressed about the application of the 
concept of "shared natural resources" to the waters of an international 
watercourse because that did not tell States how they were supposed to behave. 
He differed with that view. The principle of shared natural resources as applied 
to international watercourses was not tantamount to a comprehensive legal 
regime, and the Commission did not suggest that it was; however, it was a sound 
antecedent for such a r~gime because it implied the obligation of States to act 
co-operatively and to ~se the waters of an international watercourse in accordance 
with principles such as equitable use and sic utere tuo ut alienum non laedas. 
The Commission itself recognized that, when the draft articles were enlarged, 
they must include principles which would give concrete meaning to the parameters 
of that shared natural resource and would indicate how that resource was to be 
treated. 

22. Turning to the topic of jurisdictional immunities of States and their 
property, he said that the work done by the Commission represented a sound if 

I ••• 



A/C.6/35/sn.56 
1~nc;lish 
Po.,'.~e 6 

(Hr. Gr'ly, United States ) 

ca.utious beF3inning. To object that article 6, as drafted, was contrary to 
sur:to1.:r1.ry lo.w totally misperceived the nature. and function of the codification 
:::ir ,::c,m. The notion that the_ customary doctrine of State iYirrnunity for sovereic;n 
acts could be extended to all manner of commercia.l a.ctivity was contrary to the 
raison d I etre of sovereign ir,mmnity ,and could onlv lead to erosion of respect for 
tlie eler11ents of immunity. 'rhe thou:;ht thc1t corn.me~cial activity should be- regarded 
:1-s immune nerely because the mmership lay with a foreign State rather than with 
individuals was contrary to accepted State practice and miGht discourage col!lIDerce 
uith State tradinr: cor1panies. · 

23. Lastly, the topic of the status of the di~lomatic courier and the diplomatic 
ba[;; not accompanied h~l diploPlatic courier did not merit ur{-jent attention, and he 
trustecl thr.t the Com,aission would not distract itself from more 9ressin[ matters by 
focusinc: on that peripheral issue. He hoped that the practice of dividin3 the 
,·ietate on the Co:.unission' s rer,ort to deal uith particular issues would be continued. 

21 •• lir. ICfroch (Canada) took the Clw.ir. 

25. rir. m:::ALY (Trinidad aml Tobago), referrinc to the topic of State 
responsibility, said that draft article 33 adopted by the Cmnmission laid doun 
:.mch strict and inflexiule conditions for invol::5.n3 a state of necessity that it 
would be extrernely difficult, if not ir.1riossible, to do so successfully. llhen 
in-~roducinr ti,e report, tlle Chairman of the Co1,1111ission had said that state of 
necesr:ity covered not only cases of imminent and catastrophic physical daHaBe but 
nlso circUlustanceo in which the essential interests threatened were economic and 
financial; however, the CoL1lnission llo.d l)a.id too :.mch attention to examples of 
;)h~rs icn.l dnwaa;e ( the Tor rev Canyon incident) and not enouo;h to cases in the second 
catccory (e.!~•, the Russian Inder,mitv case, the Societe Commerciale de Belr:igue 
ense nnd the Case of uroucrties of the Bul~arian rninorities in Greece). Some 
1ric;1bero of the CorrJ.nission had acknowled1sed the importance of cases in which, for 
rt:.!acons of necessity, States had adopted conduct not in conformity uith 
obli'.:at ions "to act" in regard to the repu0.iation or sus9ension of payment of' 
international debts, 'l'he possibility of invckinr.; necessity in such cases was 
pttrticularly important in present circumstances, uith the deterioration of the: 
tc:i.·,,1s of trade and the ho.rs-;,1 conditiorn, imposed by international financial 
institutions on balance-of-1-,a.ynents sup:9ort loans, which seriously jeopardized 
t.:1e social and administrative structure of most developing countries. . The 
o.cl,Dowlcdsemcnt in positive international law of the possibility of invoking 
11cccssit:r in order to safer;uard essential economic interests woulu help the 
Goverm,1cnt s of devclopine countries to co:::·,e with their temr,ora.ry, short-term 
finnnciul d{fficulties uithout jeo:pardizing their international credit. The 
Comr!lizsion shoulu therefore revise article 33, paraGrm,h 1, accordinaly. At the 
~ru :e tine, ti1e article mi0ht reflect the not ion expressed in paragra:r;h ( 33) of th~ 
cor:mentary that, once the peril h:i.cl been averted. by the adoption of conduct 
conflictina with the international oblir;ation, con)~liance with the international 
obli o.tion affected rmst, if et ill ;naterially ;1ossible, bc13in a3ain uithout delay. 

26. Fith re[~ard to article 34, concerninG self-defence, he dicl. not believe that 
u. provision of that kint.1 shoultl be includccl in the draft urticles, since the ritJht 

/ ... 



( . I 
1 ... r. 

A/C. 6/35/f3R. 56 
Enc;lish 
Paee 7 

Sealy• Trinidad arc<l Tobar:-,) 

to self-defence could be invoked only in a particular situation in which m1 armed 
attack had occurrecl. Furthermore ,,.as was clear froy;1 paragraph (24) of tl1e 
com."!lentary to the article, the objective element of the internationally wrour,ful 
act was absent. Finally, self-cleferice uas bound up with the collective security 
arrangement established by the United Hations. 

27. As indicated in• paragraph (29) (p. 131) of the commentary to chapter V, the 
list of circUIJlstances enurnerated in that chapter was not absolutely exhaustive. · 
Since that fact was not reflected in any of the provisions of the draft, the 
Commission mie;ht in second reading, .consider the possibility of includinc; in 
Chapter V a ~eneral reservation in that connexion. 

?0. Uith regard to part 2 of the topic of State responsibility, he l)Ointed out that, 
in for!"lulating a definition of the .different forms of responsibilit,r, two factors 
should. be taken. into account: ·firstly, the greater or lesser importance ,rhich the 
international community attached to the rules at the oric;in of the oblic;ations 
violated and, secondly, the greater or lesser e;ravity of the breach itself. . In 
defininc; the der,rees of international responsibility, it was necessary to determine 
the role to be pln.yed by the concepts of reparation and sanction. The Special 
Rapporteur had suggested a method uhereby the international community could 
determine the resi1onse proportional to _the· breach of a particular obJ.in;ation. 
Accordingly, .the Committee Hould hnve to await the new report of the Special 
Rapporteur in order to decide whether the proposed plan of ,rorl·. was satisfactory. 

29. Referrine to the topic of international liability for inJurious conseq_uences 
arisin0 out of acts not prohibited by international law, he pointed out th21,t, 
according to the report, that topic essentially concerned dangers that arose uithin 
the jurisdiction of one State and caused harmful effects beyond the borders of 
that State.. The report also indicated that the main tbrust of the elaboration 
of rules on that topic should be to minimize the possibility of injurious 
consequences, and to provide adequate redress in any case in uhich injurious 
consequences did occur, uith the least possible recourse to measures that 
prohibited or hampered creative activities. It had also been suggested thut the 
i..'!ll'l1edia.te field of application of such rules mi[~ht be that of the physical 
environment but, in his opinion, that would und.uly restrict the sco::)e of the 
Commision I s uork. For example, an activity which currently entailed considerable 
danger at the transnational level was the trade in chemicals, pharmaceuticals and 
similar products of a dangerous nature, the use of which was banned in the country 
uhere they were manufactured. Such trade uas not yet prohibited under international 
law but it had injurious consequences that si.1oulcl fr.1plicate the international 
liability of the State whose nationals were carryinr; out such activities. 

30. Lastly, his tl.eleeat ion was in favour of increasfoL,, the honorariA. paid to the 
members of the Commission. 

31. Hr. lIAI~IWICH (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic) drew attention to the 
fact that the Co111L1ission had completed the first reading of th~1 uraft articles on 
State responsibility. It was l.>ecominc increasingly importnnt to stress State 
res.:_)onsibility o.ncl to strenethen international lav, in view of the fact thP.t 

I ••• 



A/c.6/35/sn.56 
Enslish 
Page 8 

(Mr. Malcarevi eh, Ukrainian SSR) 

international relations were becoming increasingly complex and since State 
responsibility was one of the most important principles of international law. 

32. lli th regard to draft article 33 concerning a state of necessity, it was 
obviously necessary to proceed with the utmost caution in determining the 
circumstances precluding wron~fulness. Accordingly, he suggested that a third 
para~raph describing such circumstances in detail should be added to draft 
article 33, so as to avoid the possibility of abuse. 

33. Not only socialist doctrine, but Western doctrine as well, recognized that 
situations of extreme necessity should be taken into account in determining 
responsibility. International practice made provision in various ways for acts 
committed with a view to protecting vital interests in circumstances of extreme 
difficulty. For example, a vessel was allowed to enter a foreign port and an 
aircraft was allowed to make a forced landing in situations of extreme difficulty. 
In contemporary international law, some agreements recosnized a State's right to 
conduct activities aimed at ~reventin~ a particularly dangerous situation. A State's 
ri~ht to denounce an agreement in particularly grave circumstances was also 
recoenizedj article X of the Non-Proliferation Treaty recognized the right of 
narties to withdraw from the Treaty if extraordinary events jeopardized the supreme 
interests of the State. Those were exceptional cases in which, because of 
objective circumstances, a State must protect its citizens from serious, imminent 
danger, and which absolved it from responsibility for acts that would normally be 
~ualified as wronp,ful. In such cases, the responsibility of the State was 
implicated only when the measures taken exceeded the limits of what was reasonably 
necessary. 

311. In its commentary on articles 31 and 33, the Commission referred only to the 
elements of force ma,1eure or fortuitous event and did not consider new situations. 
/\ccordinc;ly, there was some doubt about whether those articles were necessary. 
/\rticle 33 gave rise to other objections because it lacked any clear delimitation 
of those cases in which a State could invoke "state of necessity" as a reason for 
excludinc wrongfulness. As a result, the concept of state of necessity could be 
subJect to broad interpretations and could be invoked unjustifiably. Those 
observations also avplied to draft article 34, the text of which was ambiguous. The 
worninr, of draft article 34 should be based on the Definition of Aggression. The 
1 ight of self--defence could not be refuted, since it was embodied in the Charter~ 
rd'erence to Article 51 would help to avoid any inconsistencies. The importance of 
rlrnft article 34 depended on the extent to which the rule contained therein was 
related to cases of use of force, and it thus needed to be formulated with the 
ut.TT'ost care. 

15. Fith the four new articles on State archives, the Commission had completed its 
consideration of the draft articles on succession of States in respect of matters 
other than treaties. His delegation had no objections to those articles. 

36. Tn addition, he noted with satisfaction that the Commission had concluded the 
first reading of the draft articles on the question of treaties concluded between 
States and international or~anizations or between two or more international 

I ••• 



A/C.6/35/SR.56 
English 
Page 9 

(Mr. Makarevich, Ukrainian SSR) 

organizations. In general, the approach adopted was correct; the draft articles 
were consistent with the relevant rules of the Vienna Convention on the Law of 
Treaties and reflected the special characteristics of agreements concluded by 
international organizations.· His delegation had no objection to articles 61 to 80, 
but it could not accept the provisions contained in the annex, which placed 
international organizations on an equal footing with States. Moreover, the wording 
of paragraph 2 (c) could create political or other difficulties. 

37. In connexion with the jurisdictional immunities of States and their property, 
the Commission had prepared only two articles. In his opinion, it was necessary to 
begin by resolving questions of principle in order to determine future work. A 
valid approach would be first to prepare a detailed list of existing rules and then 
to formulate the new rules necessitated by contemporary international relations. 
Viewed in that light, the two draft articles were not acceptable. 

38. Article 6 had obvious short-comings: not only did it fail to fulfil its 
objective, but it also created new complications. The principle of the 
jurisdictional immunity of States should be set forth as .a general rule, and 
subsequent articles should then describe the exceptions to that general rule. 
Paragraph 1 was ambiguous and was not consistent with a generally accepted 
principle. Moreover, the wording of paragraph 2 was not correct and contained 
incongruities, while article 1 was merely a general statement and did not define 
the scope of the draft articles. The relevant rules must be considered more 
thoroughly and greater care must be taken in formulating the draft articles. 

39, The same was true of the work on the non-navigational uses of international 
watercourses, which presented special problems because of the nature of the 
question and the wide variety of those uses. The articles drafted by the Commission 
had considerable short-comings, mainly related to the concept of the system of 
international watercourses. That concept, which was complex in itself, should be 
the subject of a precise definition. A careful reading revealed that the first two 
articles did not define anything. To be useful, the definition should identify the 
elements of the system and explain the relationship between them. That defect had 
a negative effect on the other articles. Article 3 was not clear and articles 5 
and 10 gave rise to new problems and difficulties. 

40. With regard to the law on the diplomatic courier and the diplomatic bag, the 
delegation of the Ukrainian SSR supported the opinions expressed in the 
Commission's preliminary report. The question was extremely important in 
international relations. The formulation of rules on the subject would contribute 
to the stricter observance of the Vienna Convention on Diplomatic Relations and, 
consequently, to the development of international co-operation. 

41. Mr. SUCHARITKUL (Thailand), after summarizing the progress achieved over the 
past few years by the Sixth Committee and the International Law Commission, 
observed that there was a close connexion between the contribution made by the 
former to the progressive development and codification of international law and the 
close co-operation and association which it maintained with the latter. As a 
policy-making body, the Sixth Committee adopted a resolution each year indicating 

I •. . 



A/C.6/35/SR,56 
English 
Page 10 

(Mr. Sucharitkul, Thailand) 

the topics to be studied by the Commission and the priority to be accorded to each. 
The Committee was also the logical forum for contacts with the Commission which, as 
a subsidiary organ composed of experts serving in an individual capacity, must seek 
the opinions of Governments. 

112. He reminded the Committee that in the 1960s severe criticisms had been made of 
the short-comings of traditional international law, precisely because that law had 
developed out of the practice of a group of States to the exclusion of the interests 
of States which were attaining independence. That situation had to a large extent 
been remedied, since all Governments expressed an opinion and contributed to the . 
perfecting of legal rules. On the other hand, the responsibility for the progressive 
development of the law must fall on every member Government without exception. 

43. With fullest realization of its role, the Committee would have itself partly 
to blame if ultimately the contents of international law on any given topic still 
failed to correspond to the needs of the overwhelming majority of nations. lvithin 
the Committee, every delegation could even state that it did not subscribe to the 
change in the law and felt itself bound by the old anachronistic law which could 
best serve its immediate interests. Fortunately, such a view was becoming 
increasingly rare and the statement that rules of international law could not evolve 
without the consent of all States was losing ground. In point of fact, new rules 
were emerging every day without the consent of every State and it had become 
generally accepted that-, just as every State could participate in international 
law-maldnr,, none could obstruct it. Thus, there was a transition from the theory of 
consent to the expression of consensus, or the collective views of the members of 
the community of nations, regardless of their social, political or economic systems. 

44. Consequently, the notable improvements in international law over·the past few 
years were attributable to the wider participation of States in the international 
lau-making process. Moreover, with better rules of law, States would be better 
prepared to settle their disputes by peaceful means. 

45. llith re~ard to the succession of States in respect of matters other than 
treaties, the four draft articles on State archives approved by the Commission 
followed the basic principles applied in regard to State property. The 
indivisibility of archives, the inseparable link between archives and the territory 
transferred and the possibility of reproducing documents in order to preserve the 
integrity of archives without restricting their accessibility deserved careful 
examination. The position of third States, which although not parties to the 
succession had rights and obligations vis-a-vis the predecessor and successor States, 
must also be taken into account. 

46. The articles approved by the Commission on treaties concluded between States and 
international organizations or between two or more international organizations 
folloued the same pattern as the Vienna Convention on the Law of Treaties as far as 
the special nature of international organizations would permit, since that gave rise 
to the need for a new terminology. 

47, On the topic of State responoibility and with reference to article 34 approved 

I ••. 



A/C.6/35/SR.56 
English 
Page 11 

(}1r. Sucharitkul, Thailand) 

by the Commission, the right of self-defence, in addition to being embodied in 
Article 51 of the Charter, was indirectly recognized in the Definition. of 
Aggression adopted by the United Nations J since self-defence and aggression were 
mutually exclusive concepts. 

48. The question of the state of necessity might present more problems for lawyers 
trained in a common law system, because it did not appear to warrant preclusion of 
wrongfulness, with the exception of the relaxation of financial burden on the 
developing countries. The plea of necessity in ~riminal law might excuse the 
wrongdoer but would not justify the wrongfulness of an act. Draft article 33, 
parae;raph 1, was drafted from that point of view and with a reduced scope of 
application~. that was the only way in which the state of necessity .could he viewed 
as a circumstance precluding wrongfulness. 

49. The question of international liability for injurious consequences arising 
out of acts not prohibited by international law was closely connected with part 2 
of the study on State responsibility and referred to acts which, at the time of 
commission, had not constituted an internationally wrongful act. An act of a State 
resulting in injurious consequences would engage its liability regardless of 
absence of wrongfulness~. however, should the law prohibit such an act at the time 
of commission, that would ent7,age State responsibility in a general way. The 
Special Rapportuer had identified· that type of liability with the maxim 11sic 
utere tuo ut alienum non laedas '7

• 

50, As international law continued to evolve? what had formerly been allowed 
might be prohibited, as a consequence of a necessity recognized by the 
international community. As a minimum measure of protection, the adoption of draft 
articles on that subject would be particularly beneficial to States less developed 
industriv.lly, taking into account that international law lagged behind the advance 
of science in response to the economic needs of nations. 

51. Fith respect to the law on the non-navigational uses of international 
watercourses, Thailand was a partner in several international arrangements 
involving the uses of international watercourses, particularly the Mekong River,, 
and emphasized the vital importance of draft article 5, which introduced the 
important concept of a shared natural resource. His delegation considered it 
illusory to try to apply the principle of permanent sovereignty over natural 
resources to water that flowed in an international watercourse through various 
successive territories .. In that case, the concept of a shared natural resource was 
inevitable. A riparian State should not be allowed to exclude other riparian 
States from the habitual use of its waters by causing drastic changes in the flow 
of lmter. Unilatrral actions should give way to consultations and the adoption of 
concerted measures. Having reached that il"lportant conclusion, the Commission would 
have to examine questions which arose in connexion with the methods and criteria• 
for the use and equitable distribution of shared resources. 

52. Hith rer,ard to jurisdictional immunities of States and their property, he 
wished to express his gratitude to those delegations that had participated in the 
debate in the Committee for their contribution to the clarification of various 
points of basic im:nortance that would have to be considered in greater detail. 

I . .• 



A/C.6/35/SR.56 
English 
Page 12 

(Mr. Sucharitkul, Thailand) 

53. The title of the topic could be maintained for the time being, although there 
was still a possibility of changing it in the future in order to make it conform 
more closely with the realities of State practice. In the ultimate analysis, 
immunities were granted only to the State. The term 1'immunities of State property 1 

referred only to the scope or extent of application of the rules concerning State 
immunities. Nevertheless, no study on the topic could be considered complete, if 
it did not make reference to different aspects of jurisdictional immunities 
relating primarily to State property. Accordingly, express reference to State 
property in the title itself was not altogether purposeless. 

54. Draft article 1 ( "Scope of the present articles 11
) was tentative:, it was 

necessary because the scope of the draft articles must be defined, even if only 
approximately, so that he could proceed with his work. The definition should, 
moreover, be flexible enough to allow for future adjustments as required. Other 
draft articles of the introduction. had also been put forward on a tentative basis 
in order to give the Commission an idea of possible definitional problems connected 
with the topic. 'l'he terms .:territorial State:· and 11 forei~n State 11

, which had been 
suggested tentatively for want of better ones, had proved inadequate or unnecessary. 
It would, furthermore, be necessary to redefine the concept of jurisdiction or 
immunity from jurisdiction as expressed in terms of 11 jurisdictional immunity". That 
term had been used in contrast with the concept of :'extraterritoriality:'. Its 
scope had been confined primarily to immunity from the jurisdiction of the courts 
or the judiciary, but it also covered other forms of jurisdiction relating to the 
exercise of judicial power by the executive and administrative authorities 
responsible for the administration of justice. Although the study of State 
practice was essentially concentrated on judicial practice, the practice of the 
executive and the role it played in the process of determining the question of 
immunity were also examined. The practice of the legislature could not escape the 
attention of the Commission, and no serious study could afford to bypass 
consideration of the treaty practices of States that had a direct bearing on the 
obligation solemnly undertaken not to claim immunities in certain circumstances or 
in respect of the activities of certain government agencies. 

55. In that connexion, he reiterated the appeal made to Governments to provide 
source material, especially legislation, judicial decisions and reports or 
recommendations that had a bearing on the topic, and to send in replies to the 
questionnaire sent to them in 1979, 

56. With regard to draft article 6, concerning the principle of State immunity, a 
controversy had arisen over the use of the word 11principle '•, it having been asserted 
that State immunity should be described as a rule rather than as a principle. A 
further controversy concerned the question of whether State immunity was truly a 
rule or, rather, an exception to a rule of international law, namely, the exclusive 
sovereignty of the State. It was necessary also to consider how far the Commission 
should go into the hierarchy of fundamental norms of i1,ternational law and whether 
it should always state the accepted fundamental principles of international law, 
such as those of territoriality, sovereignty, equality of States and consent, as 
the foundation of other principles. As the representative of the United Kingdom had 

I ••• 



A/C.6/35/SP..56 
English 
Page 13 

(Mr. Suchari tk.ul, Thailand) 

pointed out, such issues had a bearing on the burden of proof. If State immunity 
was neither a principle nor a rule, but only an exception to the rule of 
sovereignty, immunity would have to be proved in each individual case. 

57. The Commission was inclined to accept that there was sufficient evidence in 
State practice, national legislation, treaties and opinions of writers to indicate 
the existence and general application of the principle of State immunity. If 
priority was given to the concept of sovereignty, immunity could be regarded as ~an 
exception~, however, if State immunity was expressed in the maximr'par in parem 
imperium non habet: 1

, State immunity was then another aspect of sovereignty and not 
an exception to it. The State claiming immunity based its claim on the principle 
of sovereignty. State immunity could thus easily be viewed as an independent 
principle; it had been so termed as early as 1812 by Chief Justice Ma~shall in 
The Schooner Exchange v. M'Faddon and subsequently in other judicial decisions, 
even though it had been clearly stated at the outset that the principle was based 
on the theory of consent of the territorial State. In any event, the conclusion 
reached was tentative, and the Commission did not intend to prejudge the outcome 
of subsequent studies. Article 6 left open the possibility of formulating other 
principles and rules qualifying that general principle and its implementation, 
limitations and exceptions. 

58. Mr. WAMALWA (Kenya) said that, with the formulation of the four additional 
draft articles· on State archives, ILC had completed its study of succession of 
States in respect of matters other than treaties. In his delegation's view, it was 
essential to ensure that the archives -of newly independent States were protected. 
It was therefore necessary that, upon attainment of independence, there should be 
an obligation on the part of the predecessor State to transfer the archives to 
their rightful owner. Hith regard to newly independent States, article 11 laid 
down the general principle governing succession in respect of both movable and 
immovable property, while draft article B dealt specifically with archives. In 
both cases the predecessor State must disclose the nature of the property involved, 
of which the successor State might have no knowledge. 

59. That obligation included the return, free of cost to the successor State~ of 
any property that had been removed from its territory, wherever such property 
might be. 

60. With regard to State responsibility, his delegation could accept the text of 
article 33, which it considered balanced. However, "state of necessityn should not 
be confused with 11 force majeure 1

',
11distress 11 or :ifortuitous eventn. Article 33 was 

appropriately worded, and he supported the ILC approach of leaving the matter to 
State practice rather than specifying concrete instances in which the principle 
could be invoked. The treatment of the burden of proof in paragraph 2 was also 
satisfactory. His delegation considered acceptable the current wording of 
article 34, which covered the various situations in which the indisputable right to 
self-defence could be invoked. 

61. With regard to non-navigational uses of international watercourses, his 
delegation fully supported the efforts of ILC. While it recognized the difficulties 
involved, it considered it essential that a functional definition of the 

I . •• 



A/C.6/35/SR.56 
English 
Page 14 

(Mr. Wamalwa, Kenya) 

international watercourses system should be produced. In principle, it was not in 
favour of the suggestion put forward by ILC that the entire international drainage 
basin 9 consisting of tributaries, lakes and canals, should be included in the ambit 
of international watercourses. His delegation believed that every State should be 
able fully to utilize water within its territory for legitimate mee,ns and without 
external pressure, provided that it allowed an adequate volume of water to flow 
on to the other riparian States. It was correct to emphasize co-operation among 
riparian States in the utilization of watercourses, and that was the ob,ject of the 
provisions of draft articles 3 to 8 concerning system agreements. 

62. In conclusion~ his delegation supported the request made by the members of ILC 
concernin~ an increase in their honoraria. 

63. Mr. EL-BANHAHY (Egypt), speaking with reference to treaties concluded between 
States and international organizations, said that in principle his delegation 
endorsed the approach taken by the International Law Commission, namely to be 
guided as closely as possible by the Vienna Convention on the Law of Treaties. 

64. With reference to draft articles 61 to 80 and the annex thereto adopted by the 
International Law Commission at its thirty-second session~ his delegation a~reed 
with the interpretation of article 61 that cases of impossibility of performance 
had to do more with the application of the treaty than with the parties or the 
conduct of the parties. With regard to article 62, it would have been preferable 
to indicate explicitly that, in the event of a dispute, the decision as to 
whether there had been a fundamental change of circumstances ,;.rould have to be taken 
by a judicial body, once the conciliation ~rocedures had been exhausted. The 
exclusion of boundary treaties, although it presented certain advantages, remained 
the subject of reservations for some States. Furthermore, there should be some 
restrictions to the exception relating to fundamental change of circumstances, so 
as to avoid any possibility that a treaty might cease to have effect following a 
unilateral decision. · 

65. The concept of a peremptory norm of international law was of recent a.ate and 
had no decisive precedent·. it would therefore be necessary to include in the text 
of article 64 a provision dealin~ with the role that would have to be played by 
the International Court of Justice in that connexion. The principle of the 
registration of international treaties required that Governments publish the 
treaties that they had concluded so as to avoid the adverse effects that could 
result from secret agreements. In the case of treaties concluded by international 
organizations, it would be sufficient to register them with the Secretariat of the 
United Nations and article 80, paragraph 1, should be amended to that effect. 

66. Since 1959 and 1971 respectively, the Secretariat of the United Nations and 
the International Lau Commission had TJlayed an important and positive role with 
regard to the law of the non-navigational uses of international waterways. General 
principles had been established that guaranteed a balance between detailed rules 
that ,-rere difficult to apply and general rules that, owine; to their generality, 
tended to be ineffective. His delegation endorsed the method adopted by the 

I • .. 



A/C.6/35/SR.56 
English 
Page 15 

(Mr. El-Banhawy, Egypt) 

International Law Commission in ,establishing a set of basic rules that was to be· 
applied to international iratercourses and was based on the principle of goodwill, 
the positive use of law, humanitarian concerns, co--operation among the user States 
of watercourses and their responsibilities in the context of fundamental rules. 
User States were formulating clear and more detailed agreements that took into 
consideration their special needs and characteristics, so as to define obligations 
and arrangements allowing for the best possible use of watercourses. 

67. With regard to the terminology used in considering the subject, he pointed 
out that in Arabic the expression :'water system 1 covered all international 
watercourses, whatever their geographical characteristics. It ·was important to 
include the term 'international". in the definition, since what was involved were 
systems of: watercourses in which. more than one State participated. The 
international character was relative and not absolute 7 and was confined solely to 
non-navi~ational uses ; the navigational use of international watercourse systems 
was involved only when other uses of the waters affected navigation, as indicated 
in article 1, paragraph 2. 

68. The draft articles would serve primarily as a basis~ once the International 
Law Commission had received the replies from Governments to the questionnaire and 
wao in a position to complete work on the draft. His delegation supported the 
idea that each international watercourse system should be organized in a manner 
appropriate to the needs of that system. 

69. Besides the principle that system States must negotiate in good faith, as 
provided in article 3, the principles of justice and fairness in the use of 
international watercourse systems should also be added. He referred to the 
examples in paragraph ( 3) of. the commentary to article 3 dealing with international 
watercourses, namely the 1923 Geneva Convention and the 1969 Brasilia Treaty on the 
River Plate Basin. Those agreements were of a general nature and did not inhibit 
the parties from entering into specific or partial agreements, bilateral or 
multilateral, tending towards the.attainment of the general objectives of 
developing the basins in question. His delegation supported the conclusions of 
the International Law Commission, which were in agreement with the views of 
specialists. The best way of dealing with a watercourse was to deal with it as a 
whole, as had been done with regard to the Amazon, the Plata, the Niger and the 
Chad basins. There was no doubt that some issues arising out of watercourse 
pollution necessitated co-operative action on the part of all riparian States, which 
required the establishment of unified treatment and the conclusion of agreements 
among the parties concerned. What was involved was an obligation that flowed from 
customary international law. 

70. With regard to paragraph (19) of the commentary to article 3, he referred to 
the analogy mentioned between the obligation of States to negotiate in good faith 
agreements with reeard to the continental shelf and their obligation to neeotiate 
in good faith o.sreements with regard to the uses of the water of international 
watercourse systems, and indicated that, al though both cases were important from 
the economic point of view, that of watercourses raised a vital issue. Egypt 
believed that the sol~ manner in which the joint use of watercourses could be 

I ... 



A/C,M/35/CR.56 
r::nr,linh 
Page lG 

(Hr. El-Bnnhawy, Egypt) 

rcRulated, with particular reference to efforts to combat pollution, was by the 
conclusion of agreements. The obligation to negotiate with a view to concluding 
fiRreements was also in conformity with Article 33 of the United Nations Charter. 

71, Article 4 stated that every system State of an international watercourse 
oystem was entitled to participate in the negotiation of any system agreement that 
applied to the international water system as a whole and that could affect its use 
of the system's watersj in that connexion he referred to the Convention regarding 
the Determination of the Legal Status of the Frontier between Brazil and Uruguay. 

72. ~rticle 5, relating to the use of waters which constituted a shared natural 
resource, was extremely important with reference to protecting th~ environment. 
The concept of shared natural resources could be found in the Charter of Economic 
Rights and Duties of States, in the Mar del Plata Action Plan adopted at the United 
Nations Water Conference and in the draft principles of conduct in respect of 
shared natural resources prepared by the United Nations Environment Programme. 
Regional and interregional co--operation between States sharing natural resources 
was essential. AlthouBh treaties generally accepted the principle of equality in 
the sharing of boundary waters between two riparian States, sharing in equal 
nortions was not the only method employed. 

73. Turning to the subject of the Jurisdictional immunities of States and their 
property, he indicated that his Government had responded to the questionnaire in 
Harch 1980. His delegation endorsed the method adopted by the International Law 
Commission in studying the subject and thanked the Special Rapporteur for his worlc. 

74. Referring to the status of the diplomatic courier and the diplomatic bag not 
accompanied by the diplomatic courier, he stressed the need to adopt more exact 
rules, since the existing asreements had gaps. An additional protocol to the 
Vienna Convention on Diplomatic Relations should be prepared as soon as possible. 

75. In conclusion his delegation noted with satisfaction the co~operation between 
the International Law Commission and the regional bodies mentioned in the report. 

The meeting rose at 6.15 p.m. 




